


20(a) of the Exchange Act, Rule lOb-5 promulgated by the SEC, 17 C.F.R. §240.lOb-5.

2. Venue is proper in this District pursuant to Section 27 of the Exchange

Act and 28 U.S.C. §1391(b) and (c). The principal executive offices of the managers of

CCC are located in this District, CCC has its de facto principal place of business in this

District, all Defendants transacted business in this District, and most of the acts and

transactions constituting the violations of law alleged herein, including the preparation,

issuance and dissemination of materially false and misleading statements to the investing

public, occurred in this District.

3. In connection with the acts, conduct and other wrongs alleged herein, each

of the Defendants, directly and/or indirectly, used the means and instrumentalities of

interstate commerce, including the United States mails, interstate telephone

communications and national securities markets.

CCC and the PARTIES

4. Plaintiff E. L. Phelps ("Plaintiff') is an individual who purchased 30,789

Class B shares of CCC and/or the equivalents (restricted depositary shares ("RDSs"))

each redeemable for one Class B share) during the Class Period.

5. Non-Party CCC is a Guernsey limited company with its principal place of

business in Washington, D.C. It is presently in liquidation.

6. Defendant Carlyle Investment Management, LLC ("CIM") is a Delaware

limited liability company with itspiiricipalplace of business in Washington, D.C. elM,

pursuant to an investment management agreement with CCC, was, at all pertinent times,

the investment manager of CCC, with full discretionary investment authority.

7. Defendant T.C. Group, LLC ("TCG") is a Delaware limited liability

company with its principal place of business in Washington, D.C. TCG owns 75% of

CIM and, as such, is or was a control person of CIM, and in tum, was a control person of

CCC, under and pursuant to §20 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ("Exchange

Act").
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8. Defendant TC Group, Holdings, LLC ("TCG Holdings") is a Delaware

limited liability company with its principal place of business in Washington, D.C. TCG

Holdings is the managing member of TCG. As such, TCG Holdings is or was a control

person of TCG, CIM and CCC at all relevant times. Effectively, because of its

domination and control of TCG, CIM and CCC, it controlled at all relevant times the

public statements made in the name of CCC including, inter alia, the contents of CCC's

Offering Memoranda described below.

9. CIM, TCG and TCG Holdings and/or other affiliated entities do business

as "The Carlyle Group." There does not appear to be a business entity by that name,

although CCC referred to TCG as "The Carlyle Group" in certain of its publicly

disseminated documents.

10. CIM, TCG and TCG Holdings are hereinafter referred to as the "Carlyle

Entities" or "Carlyle."

11. Defendant William Elias Conway, Jr., a Virginia resident, is or was a

managing director ofCIM, a director ofCCC, and the Chief Investment Officer ofTCG.

12. Defendant John Crumpton Stomber, a Connecticut resident, is or was the

Chief Executive Officer, Chief Investment Officer and President, and a director, ofCCC,

a Managing Director of CIM, and a Managing Director of TCG.

13. Defendant James H. Hance, a resident of North Carolina, was a Director

orCCC from September 14, 2006 and at alTreTevanf tiines thereafter. Defendant Rance

was, at all pertinent times until March 2007, the Chairman of the Board of CCC.

Defendant Hance was also, contemporaneously, a senior advisor to CIM.

14. Defendant Michael J. Zupon, a resident of New York, was a Director of

CCC from September 14, 2006 and at all relevant times thereafter. Zupon was a

founding member, Chief Investment Officer and Managing Director and Head of

Carlyle's US Leveraged Finance Group and was a Partner and Managing Director of

Carlyle.
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15. Eachof Conway, Hance,Stomberand Zupon were also membersof an

InvestmentCommitteewhich was establishedfor CCC andwas chairedby Conway.As

such, the InvestmentCommitteewas constitutedexclusivelyby the CCC directorswho

were also directors,officers and/or employeesof TCG and/or CIM and/orother TCG

affiliates.

16. DefendantRobertBarclay Allardice, III, a residentof New York, was a

Directorof CCCfrom September14, 2006andat all relevanttimesthereafter.

17. DefendantHarveyJaySarles,a residentof Massachusetts,wasa Director

ofCCCfrom September14,2006andat all relevanttimesthereafter.

18. DefendantJohnLeonardLoveridge,a residentof Guernseywasa Director

ofCCCfrom September14,2006andat all relevanttimesthereafter.

19. CCC was controlled, at all levels, by Carlyle employees. First, CCC's

managementand investmentcommittee consistedentirely of Carlyle employeesand

advisors,including CCC'smost seniorofficer, DefendantStomber. Second,CCC'ssix

outstandingCarlyle'sClassA shares,which werethe only voting sharesissuedby CCC,

wereheld at all relevanttimesby personswho wereemployedasManagingDirectorsof

Carlyle who thus had the power to selectthe Board of Directors (the ClassB shares

owned by Plaintiff and the Class were non voting shares).Third, CCC's board of

directorswasled, anddominatedby, Carlyleemployeesandadvisors.

20. DeferioaIltsHance,AIlafdice, Sarles and Loveridge were, at all -times

relevant, through meetingsof the CCC Board of Directors and otherwise,kept well­

informed by DefendantsConway, Stomberand Zupon and the Carlyle Entities of all

materialfactsbearinguponthe financial andoperatingconditionof CCCandthe fact that

its survivalwasat seriousrisk.

21. Defendants Stomber, Conway, Zupon, Hance, Allardice, Sarles and

Loveridge are hereinafter referred to as the "Individual Defendants."Each of the

Individual Defendantshad the power to control, and exercisedsuch control, over the
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documentsandstatementsdisseminatedto the investingpublic in thenameof CCC.

22. Becauseof the Individual Defendants'positionswithin and/orotherwise

related to the Carlyle Entities, they eachhad accessto adverseundisclosed material

informationaboutCCC'strue financial conditionandinvestments.Theyeachwereprivy

to such undisclosedinformation from internal corporatedocuments,communications

amongthemselvesandwith otherofficers andemployeesof the Carlyle Entities as well

as attendanceat, and documentsreceivedduring, meetingsof management,and Boards

of Directors.Eachof the Individual Defendantsknewor weredeliberatelyrecklessin not

knowing of the adversematerialfactswhich renderedthe statementsallegedhereinfalse

andmisleading.Despitepersonalknowledgeof the fundamentallydeterioratedcondition

of CCCthroughoutthe ClassPeriod,eachIndividual Defendantwasmotivatedto conceal

suchcircumstancesfrom investorswhile theyconcurrentlywereseekingfurther infusions

of critically-neededcapitalandsupporting,artificially, the offering andmarketpricesof

CCC shares.

23. Becauseof their positions, their ability to exerCIse actual operational

control, power and influence with respectto CCC's courseof conduct, including the

fraudulent schemesand acts describedherein, and their accessto material inside

informationaboutCCC, the Individual Defendants,CIM, Tca andTca Holdingswere,

at the time of the wrongsallegedherein,controllingpersonsof CCC within the meaning

ofSechon20(a)of theExchangeAet.

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

24. Plaintiff brings this action as a classaction pursuantto Rule 23(a) and

(b)(3) of the FederalRules of Civil Procedureon behalfof a Classconsistingof all

United Statesresidentsand businessentities with principal placesof businessin the

UnitedStateswho purchasedor otherwiseacquiredClassB sharesor RDSsof CCC in its

initial public offering and/orin marketpurchasesduring the period from June19, 2007
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throughMarch 17, 2008, inclusive(the "ClassPeriod")andweredamagedthereby("the

Class"). Excludedfrom the ClassaretheDefendantsherein,officersanddirectorsof the

CarlyleEntitiesandCCC,membersof their immediatefamilies andthe heirs,successors

or assignsof anyof the foregoing.Thedefinition of the Classis subjectto discoverywith

respectthereto and may be amendedat the time Plaintiff files his motion seeking

certificationof theClassby theCourt.

25. The membersof the Classare so numerousthat joinderof all membersis

impracticable. While the exactnumberof Classmembersis unknownto Plaintiff at this

time andcanonly beascertainedthroughappropriatediscovery,theybelievethereare,at

a minimum,morethan500membersof theClass.

26. CCC commonstocktradedon Eurolistby Euronext,an openandefficient

market, during the ClassPeriod. Euronext is the fifth largest stock exchangein the

world. It has,sinceApril 2007, beenownedby the sameownershipas the New York

Stock Exchange,NYSE Euronext, Inc. ("NYSE Euronext"), a Delawarecorporation.

NYSE Euronext touts the combinedenterpriseas the "first global stock exchange."

American investorswith typical brokerageaccountshave identical accessto purchase

Euronext-tradedsecuritiesasthey do to securitiestradedon US-basedexchangessuchas

theNYSE or NASDAQ.

27. A substantial majorityof CCC shareswere,at all times,ownedby United

··Statesresidents.. Thus, inaddlfion tofheTadthat CCC was managedby Americans

residingandconductingbusinessin the United States,its shareswereownedprincipally

by investorsin theUnitedStates.

28. Commonquestionsof law and fact exist as to all membersof the Class

and predominateover any questionsaffecting solely individual membersof the Class.

Thefollowing arequestionsof law andfact commonto the Class:

• whetherthe Defendantsengagedin actsor conductin violation of federal

securitieslawsasallegedherein;
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• whether the Defendants made intentional and/or reckless

misrepresentationsand/or omissionsof material facts regardingCCC to

the investingpublic;

• whethersuchmisrepresentationsand/oromissionsof material facts were

essentially linked to the damagessustainedby the Plaintiff and the

membersof the Class;

• whethertheDefendantsactedknowingly or with deliberaterecklessnessin

making false and misleadingstatements,in issuing false and misleading

financial statements,news releases and other communicationsto the

investingpublic aboutthe financial andoperatingconditionof CCC;

• whetherthepricesof CCC sharesduring the ClassPeriodwereartificially

inflatedbecauseof theDefendants'conductcomplainedofherein;and

• whetherthe membersof the Classhavesustaineddamagesand, if so, the

propermeasureof suchdamages.

29. Plaintiffs claims are typical of thoseof the ClassbecausePlaintiff and

the other membersof the Class sustaineddamagesarising out of the Defendants'

wrongful conduct,in violation of federallaw.

30. Plaintiff will fairly andadequatelyprotectthe interestsof the membersof

the Class and has retained counsel competentand experiencedin class actions and

securitieslitigation. Plaintiff hasno interestsantagonisticto, or in conflict with, thoseof

the Class.

31. A class action is superior to other available methodsfor the fair and

efficient adjudicationof the controversysincejoinderof all the membersof the Classis

impracticable. Furthermore,becausethe damagessufferedby most of the individual

Classmembersmay be relatively small, the expenseand burdenof individual litigation

makesit impracticablefor the Classmembersindividually to redressthe wrongsdoneto

them. Therewill beno difficulty in themanagementof this actionasaclassaction.
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SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS

32. During theClassPeriod,theDefendantscausedto be issuedaseriesof

falseandmisleadingstatements,andomittedmaterialfactsthatwererequiredto be

disclosed,regardingthetrueoperatingandfinancial conditionofCCC, in violation of

SectionslOeb)and20(a)of theExchangeAct andRule IOb-5.

About CCC, its BusinessModel andits InvestmentGuidelines

33. CCC is a limited companyincorporatedin Guernsey,ChannelIslands,on

August29,2006. CCC wasan investmentfund heavilypromotedby the CarlyleEntities

before and following its incorporation. CCC shareswere initially sold to investors

through a private placement,and later would becomepublicly tradedas a result of a

public offering commencingin June 2007. CCC's stated objective was to achieve

superiorannualprofits anda dividendyield of at least12%by investingin a purportedly

diversified portfolio comprisingresidentialmortgagebackedsecurities("RMBS") and

leveragedfinancial assets,seekingto generatereturns principally from the difference

betweenthe interestearnedon the acquiredassets andthe costof financingthoseassets

throughshort term repurchase("repo") agreementsand other forms of financing. CCC

purportedly was to conduct its business within strict Investment Guidelines

("Guidelines")in orderto minimize risk andto provide a "safety-net"to protectCCC if

thereoccurredexcessivemarketvolatility andotherforeseeableevents.In fact, CCC was

a vehiCle for tneCCCEntities to capitalizeon The Carlyle Group'sreputationwitliso=

called "private equity" investmentsand the investing public's needfor fundamentally

high-quality investmentswith significant cashreturns.Carlyle's goal in creatingCCC

was to provide an opportunity to generatefor Carlyle and its founders massive

management,incentive and other fees chargedto CCC which was, from the outset,

anythingbut safeandsounddespiteits apparentlyrisk-freeRMBS andothersecurities.It

was,by the time its initial capital was investedin RMBS a "houseof cards"only to be

mademorevulnerableto collapseby thetime of its public offering discussedbelow.

8

Case 1:11-cv-01142-ABJ   Document 1    Filed 06/21/11   Page 8 of 43



26. By thetime of the commencementofCCC'sprivateplacementof

securities,CCCwasalreadyin precariousfinancial health,which waswell-concealed

from potentialinvestors,counterpartiesandothersoutsideof CCC. In puttingtogetherits

collectionofRMBS andotherfinancial assets,TheCarlyleEntitiescausedCCCto

acquireor committo acquiringvolatile, high-risksecuritiesthatcouldonly bepurchased

usingmassiveborrowingwith thesecuritiespurchasedservingascollateral.

34. Underits repoagreements,CCC soldRMBS to its repocounterpartiesand

agreedto repurchasethe sameRMBS backfrom themat apriceequalto theoriginal sale

priceplusaccruedinterest.Theoriginal salepriceto the repocounterpartywould beat a

discountto the fair valueof thesecurity,beinganinitial marginknownasa "haircut".

While mostofCCC'sRMBS werethe subjectof repos,CCC did retaina smallportionof

its RMBS asunencumberedsecuritiesfor thepurposeof maintainingat leastsomeliquid

assetsnecessaryto meetmargincalls thatwerelikely to resultdueto decreasesin the

valueof the securitiesor increasesin theamountof thehaircutsthatcouldbe imposedon

CCCby thecounterpartieswhentheRMBS were"re-financed"and/orsubjectto margin

calls.

35. TheDefendantswereawarethatthe financingof CCC'sinvestmentsin

RMBS throughrepos utilizingextensivelevelsof leverageexposedCCCto extraordinary

marketandothersubstantialrisks. For example,ifCCC wereto borrow$20billion to

purchase$20bilIlonTriRMBS, al% drop irithe valueof the securities,or a 1%increase

in the haircut,would requireit to put up anadditional$200million in collateralto avoida

default. To attemptto containthoserisks, asindicatedabove,Defendants,on or about

October4,2006,establishedcertainrisk managementand"InvestmentGuidelines"for

CCC.TheseGuidelines,althoughtheyprovidedCCC'sBoardandseniormanagement

with ampleflexibility andgavethemampleroomto functionwithin statedrisk

parameters,wereintendedto protectCCC from a "meltdown" or catastrophicfailure of
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the typethatultimatelyoccurredonly monthslaterandbroughtCCCto insolvencyand

liquidation.

36. Most importantly,the Guidelinesrequired"Minimum Liquidity" of"20%

of Capital"asa "limit on total portfolio leverage."This requirementwasgenerally

referredto by CCCasits "Liquidity Cushion"- anunencumberedminimumliquidity

cushionwasnecessaryto protectCCC'scapital,by ensuringthatcashandequivalents

would bereadilyavailableto meettherequirementsimposedby CCC'srepo

counterpartiesandotherfinanciers. Liquid assetswould benecessaryto meetanymargin

callseffectedby thesefinanciersin responseto anydecreasesin marketvalueof the

financedassetsand/orincreasesin collateralrequirements. The20%liquidity cushion,

andCCC'sbusinessmodel,moregenerally,weremodeled,purportedly,to withstand

marketvolatility of theorderexperiencedin the Summerof 1998.

37. TheGuidelinesalsorequiredCCCto maintain"minimumborrowingand

liquidity capacityof 150%(with a targetof200%)oftotal investmentassets."

38. TheGuidelinesalsolimited thecapitalallocatedto investmentsin RMBS

to amaximumof 85%of CCC'stotal capital,a furtherkey risk managementmeasure

underCCC'sBusinessModel.

39. CCC'sbusinessmodelidentifieda maximumleverageratio of 19 times

capital(in otherwords,it would not borrowmorethan19 times its unencumbered

investmerifcapitaI).Biearly20U7,at tne time tilefbegansoliciting irivestmentsfor

CCC'sprivateplacementsof$ 600million from salesof ClassB shares,however,

Defendantsraisedthis thresholdto 29 timescapital. In practice,leveragegenerally

exceeded30 timesCCC'scapital.

The Initial Financing of CCC

40. At thefirst boardmeetingin Washington,D.C. on October6, 2006,

DefendantStomberinformedtheBoardthatCarlyleandCIM hadalreadycausedCCCto

committo purchase$2 billion in securities.StomberthendescribedCCC'sBusiness
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Model andtheuseofleverage.Stomber"explainedthat [Ccq is operatingwith a 38%

liquidity cushionwhich wason theconservativeendof the spectrum."DefendantHance,

a CCC Director,andStomber,informedtheBoardthat"the mostfrequentquestions

receivedto-datein their fundraisingactivitiesrelatedto theuseof leverage,"which the

Individual Defendants,includingemployeesof Carlyle,weredescribingto potential

investorsas"conservative."At a subsequenttelephonicBoardmeetingon December20,

2006,in discussingCCC'sfinancial statements,StomberinformedtheBoard"that

managementhadnot, anddid not intend,to utilize themaximumamountof leverage

availableunderthe leverage[sic] cushion,"essentiallywhatwasbeingtold to prospective

investors.

41. By December31, 2006,the first roundof externalinvestmentin CCC was

completedthrougha privateplacementof 13,154,000sharesat anissuepriceof $20per

ClassB share,raising$263,080,000.

42. On February2,2007,Defendantscausedthe Guidelinesfor CCC to be

amendedsuchthatthe minimumborrowingandliquidity capacitywasreducedfrom

150%(with a targetof 200%)to 125%(with a targetof 150%)of total investmentassets.

Theamendmentwasapprovedby CCC'sBoardat a meetingheldon February15,2007.

Stomberexplainedthattheamendmentwas"prudent"and"advisableto give

managementflexibility to respondto changingmarketconditions."

43. eeeissueda fiirtner16,846,OOOsnaresoywayofaprivateplacemenfon

February28, 2007,raising$336,920,000.Thetotal amountraisedby CCC'sprivate

placementsby thattime wasapproximately$600million.

CCCIncurredSubstantialUnrealizedLosses,andits Business
Model WasFailing, in Advanceof its Ill-Advised IPO

44. At aMarch5, 2007Boardmeeting,StomberinformedtheBoardthatCIM

would likely beentitledto anincentivefee on CCC'sportfolio for thequarterended

March31, 2007"andwould be fully profitablefor The Carlyle Group."
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45. At the samemeeting,Carlyleofficer William Greenwoodgavethe Board

anupdateon the statusof the subprimemortgagemarketandthe"relateddeteriorationin

thecreditmarket." By theSpringof 2007,therewasconsiderableturbulencein mortgage

markets. Therewerebankruptcyfilings of numerousmortgageoriginators,including

Ownit MortgageSolutions,AmericanFreedomMortgageInc., MortgageLenders'

NetworkUSA andResMaeMortgageCorp; and indicesthattrackedthevalueof

mortgage-backedinstrumentshaddeclineddramaticallyby early2007. Nonetheless,

theBoarddid not discusswhatprotectivestepsneededto betakenby its membersand

managementto ensurethatCCCwaspreparedfor further foreseeabledeteriorationin

financial marketsand,in particular,in thosein which RMBS werebeingcreated,

financed,boughtandsold.

46. TheDefendantshad,sincethe formationof CCC,plannedto conductan

initial public offering ("IPO") of CCC ClassB shares,bothfor purposesof (1) raising

additionalcapitalto attemptto competewith otherhighly capitalizedfundsperceivedby

theDefendantsto becompetitors,and(2) to supporta public marketfor CCC sharesthat

would enabletheDefendantsto profit from the saleof CCC sharesthey receivedas

incentivecompensation.By March2007,theDefendantshadalreadycommenced

preparationofanoffering memorandum(the"Offering Memorandum")for the IPO that,

asanoffering by a supposedly"foreign" company(eventhoughit wasmanagedalmost

e£chisIvelybyAmericansintheUnitedStates)would avoidregIstratiOnwith<ind direCt

oversightby theUS SecuritiesandExchangeCommission.

47. At theMarch5,2007CCC Boardmeeting,theBoardreviewedthe latest

draft of the Offering Memorandumpreparedby Defendantsandfocusedin particularon

the sectionentitled,"Management'sDiscussionandAnalysis" ("MD&A"). Stombertold

theBoardthat"theprimarygoalof theMD&A sectionwasto inform aprospective

shareholderthattheoverall investmentstrategyof [Ccq wasto allocatecapitalanduse

leveragein a mannerto maximizeshareholdervalueandgeneratea steadydividend".
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Stomberexplainedthattherefore"the disclosurein theMD&A focusedonthe liquidity

cushion,thediversificationoftheportfolio ... and[CCC's] affiliation with Carlyle"

(emphasisadded),all ofwhich wereconsistentwith the"relativelyconservative"

descriptionofCCCmadeby theDefendantsat the time of theprivateplacements.The

foregoingdiscussionsreflectapremeditatedintentto draft a misleadingOffering

Memorandumthatde-emphasizedtherisks involved in CCC'sbusinessmodel,while

emphasizingtheassociationwith Carlyle,abrandnamemorecommonlyaffiliated with

moreconservativeforms of investment.

48. With hundredsof millions ofdollarsalreadyin handfrom theprivate

placements,DefendantscausedCCCto continueto borrowaggressively,andto acquire

RMBS. By March30,2007,CCChadalreadyacquired$17.3billion of financial assets

(including$16.5billion ofRMBS) andhadincurreddebtof$16.1billion throughrepos.

49. In April 2007,Stombersoughtapprovalfrom thedirectorsofCCC,on an

alleged"one-timebasis,"to usetheLiquidity Cushionto buy certainRMBS prior to the

IPO, which entaileda reductionin theminimumLiquidationCushionrequirementto

15%. TheBoardapprovedhis request.

50. By May 2007,Carlyleand CIMhadconsumedthemajority ofthecapital

availableto CCC for thepurchaseofRMBS andsoughtto obtainfurthercapitalto

increasethe sizeof CCC'sinvestmentportfolio and,with it, CCC'sleverage.Carlyleand

CI1vrdidl1()twanfto wait to receivetheproceedsoftheplannedIPOin oiderto purcliase

moreRMBS.

51. On May 10,2007,CCC enteredinto a termloanagreementwith

CitiGroupGlobalMarketsInc. (a corporate"sister"ofoneof thebrokeragefirms which

would, ultimately,markettheIPO to investors)which allowedCCCto borrowup to $191

million. The loan(the"Bridge Loan") wasobtainedin contemplationof the IPO andwas

requiredto berepaidfrom theproceedsof the IPG. By May 30, 2007,Carlyleand CIM

hadalreadycausedCCCto borrowtheentireamountavailableundertheBridgeLoan
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andusedtheproceedsto financetheacquisitionofadditionalRMBS in conjunctionwith

furtherrepofinancing.

52. By May 2007,astheDefendantswerewell-aware,conditionsin global

creditmarketshaddeterioratedsignificantlysinceCCC'sfonnationin late2006.The

increasein subprimemortgagedefaults,first notedby the Boardin February2007,began

to haveanincreasinglynegativeimpactin themarketfor RMBS. Widespreadmortgage

defaultswereoccurringin theUnitedStates,which erodedthevalueof certainRMBS

andanalogousassets.BetweenNovember2006andJune11,2007,therisk asmeasured

by APV for eachRMBS securityincreasedanastounding58%.

53. During May 2007,CCC'sportfolio sufferedanunrealizedlossof$41.6

million or 7% of CCC'snetassetvalue,andfurthersignificantlossesof up to $50million

wereanticipatedwith materiallygreaterlossesforeseeable.Moreover,margincalls for

another$70million wereexpectedwhich would reducethe liquidity cushionbelow20%,

anda numberof CCC's lendersstartedto requesthaircutsof 3%, representinganincrease

in collateralrequiredof 50%.

54. OnJune7, 2007Stombersenta lengthyemailto theBoardof CCC,

infonningtheBoardof substantiallossesthatCCChadsustainedasa resultof recent

marketevents. Stombertold theBoardthatasa consequenceofa changein the"5 years

swaprate,"a $25 million unrealizedgainhadbecomean$8 million unrealizedlosson

CCC's�m�o�r�t�:�g�a�g�e�-�b�a�c�h�~�d�s�e�c�u�r�i�H�e�s arid thatCCCsNefAssetValuehaddeClinedasa

result.Stomberstatedthat"[t]oday wasawild day" in themarket"whererateswentup

materially"andthatCCC couldsustainfurthersignificantlossesof up to $50million.

StomberwarnedtheBoardthatthe level of CCC'sunrealizedlossesraiseddisclosure

issuesfor the IPO. Most importantly,StomberwasawareandinfonnedtheBoardthat

thoseeventshadnegativelyimpactedCCC'sLiquidity Cushion:

Badnewsis thepricechangehaserodedthe liquidity cushionaswe make
margincallsbasedon spreadchanges.TheLiq Cushionstandsat 23
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percentbut couldbecalleddowncloseto 20 percent- that is why we have
it.

55. Six dayslater, on June13,2007,Stombersenta furtheremail to CCC's

Directors,entitled"StatusofCCC". Theemailwascopiedto variousCarlyleofficers.

StomberinformedCCC'sDirectorsthat"[l]ast night we madethedecisionto postpone

the IPQ ofCCC asa resultof volatile marketconditions,anuncertainMTM [marked-to-

market]of ourbalancesheetandcompsin theequitymarkettradingdown 10-25%."

Stombersaidthatasof June11,2007,CCC'sIFRS1 net income"wason targetfor a

14.5%2nd quarter"but healsonotedthatCCC's"Fair ValueReservewasdown

$63.9MMfrom inceptionand$76.2MMfor theyear,"meaningthatCCChadsuffered

unrealizedlossesin thoseamountsunderIFRS. StomberthenoutlinedCCC's"next steps

for the immediatefuture," andstated:

We arehavinga majorliquidity eventso I invoked"emergencypowers"
on thebalancesheet.The liquidity cushionis currentlyat $148MM, which
is technicallyabove20%of our currentMTM equityposition.But please
takeno comfort in that,we couldbemargincalledfor up to another
$70MM andthereforebring thecushiondownto about11%. Therefore,
we needindependentBoardMemberapprovalto go under20% - that is
thepurposeof the liquidity cushion- to betheresowe don [sic] not have
to sell securitiesat depressedpricesduringa margincall. Therefore,I ask
you for your formal approval.

1 CCC'sfinancial statementsandquarterlyreportswerepreparedon thebasisof
InternationalFinancialReportingStandards("IFRS"), issuedby the International

. �A�Q�~�Q�u�n�t�i�n�g SJ<mciard_s.�B�Q�.�a�r�d�.�_�1�E�R�S�Y�C�l�.�f�i�~�s�.�i�I�l�~�~�r�1�a�i�!�L�s�.�i�g�l�l�i�f�i�c�a�.�l�l�l WS.lKQ.tS.fLOllLU llited .
StatesGenerallyAcceptedAccountingPrinciples("GAAP"). In particular,IFRS allowed
CCC to avoidrecognizingpublicly thematerialdeclinein thefair valueof its investment
assetsaslosses,factswell-knownby thedefendantsbut concealedfrom theinvesting
public. UnderIFRS, CCCprimarily classifiedits investments(includingRMBS) as
"availablefor sale"andgainsandlossesarisingfrom changesin the fair valueof those
investmentswererecognizeddirectly in equityas"fair valuereserve(deficit)", unlessthe
investmentsweresoldor impaired.Thatis, thegainsandlossesfrom changesin fair
valueweregenerallynot recordedaspartofCCC'snetincomeor loss. UnderU.S.
GAAP, gainsandlossesarisingfrom changesin the fair valueof "availablefor sale"
investmentswould havebeenrecordedaspartofCCC'snet incomeor loss.By utilizing
IFRS accounting,theDefendants,notwithstandingtheir own knowledgeof thematerial
deteriorationof thevalueof CCC's investmentportfolio andexposureto massivelosses,
wereableto anddid concealthesefactsfrom prospectiveinvestors.
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56. Stomberthenreferredto possibleassetsalesto free up capitalandthen

referredto the"$200MM bankloanthatwasto berepaidwith proceedsfrom the IPO"

andsaidthattherewould be internaldiscussionasto howto manageit. Stomber

identifiedthepossibilityofasking"the banksto convertat least100MM to equityto

mirror theoriginal dealtheyhadoncecommittedto."

57. Notwithstandingthe additionalrisk to CCC'sability to survive,on June

14,2007,theBoardresolvedto reduceCCC'sminimumLiquidity Cushionrequirement

from 20%to no lessthan10%of AdjustedCapital.

58. During June2007,CCC'sportfolio sufferedanunrealizedlossof$52

million or 9.4%ofCCC'snetassetvalue.Whencombinedwith theunrealizedlossin

May 2007of 7% of netassetvalue,CCC suffereda 16%lossto netassetvalue,

equivalentto the 16%"worst casescenario"lossmodeled(basedon eventsin 1998)by

CIM whenDefendantsestablishedtheminimum20%Liquidity CushionInvestment

Guideline.This highlightedtheneedto not only preserveminimumliquidity, but to

increaseandmaintaina materiallyhigher level of liquidity thantheminimumof 20%.

59. In theperiodJunethroughto August2007,at a time whenCCC's

financial viability wasalreadyat risk, CIM, Carlyleandthedirectorsof CCCdid not

increaseor evenmaintainCCC'sminimum20%Liquidity Cushion.This wasdespitethe

fact that it becameclearthattheminimum20%Liquidity Cushionwasnot sufficientto

meetmargincallsatiilblltable to tllechangesillthefair vailleo[CCC'ssecuritiessubject

to reposaswell asmeetingincreased"haircuts"from certainofCCC'srepo

counterparties.

60. By the endof June2007,in justninemonths,CCChadacquired$21.8

billion ofRMBS, representing95%ofCCC'stotal assets,financedby shortterm

borrowingsunderrepoagreementsof $21.2billion CCC'sleverageratio asat June30,

2007was 40.2times,or 29.8timesby treatingthe BridgeLoanof$191 million asequity.

Without the inclusionofthe$191 million in proceedsoftheBridgeLoan (which was
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requiredto berepaidto CCC'slenders),CCC'sLiquidity Cushionwaslessthanzeroon

June30, 2007. Includingtheproceedsof thebridgeloan,CCC'sLiquidity Cushionwas

$186,100,000at June30, 2007comprisedof cashandcashequivalentsof$35,400,000

andunencumberedassetsof$150,700,000,andrepresented27%ofadjustedcapital.

61. As at June30, 2007,CCC'sreportedequity/netassetvaluewas

$552,629,000andhadfallen belowthe $600,000,000in capitalraisedby way ofprivate

placement.

62. Notwithstandingthecalamitousperformanceof CCC,themanagement

andincentivefeespaidto CIM for the six monthsendedJune30,2007were$4,421,000

and$4,681,000respectively.Otherfeespaidto Carlyleand CIMfor thequarteras

reimbursementfor purportedoverheadexpensesrelatingto office rent, furniture, supplies

andpersonnelsalariestotaled$660,000.In addition,CCC"reimbursed"CarlyleandCIM

$2,545,000for its chargesfor "internalusesoftwareandotherproperty".In otherwords,

despitehavinglost in the rangeof$60million of thecapitalofCCC(andmuchmore

underGAAP), Carlyleand CIMwerepayingthemselvesnearly$10million for their

"services"andotherwise.

CCCMadeMaterialMisrepresentationsandOmissionsin theOffering
MemorandumConcerningits GraveFinancialCondition,andProceededWith its

Ill-Advised IPO AgainsttheAdvice of its Underwriters

63. In June2007,CCC'sunderwriterbanksadvisedCarlyle that,becauseof

ongoingmarketvolatility, CCC'sIPQ shouldbedelayed.VariousinternalCarlyle

communicationsindicatethattheDefendantsremaineduncertainwhetherthe IPO should

or wouldproceedin light of instability in the fixed incomeandequitymarketsandtheir

impacton CCC. Defendantspreparedvariousalternative"scripts"to usefor

communicationsto investorsandjournalistsin theeventthatthe IPO did notproceedat

all, which Defendantshadwidely toutedpublicly.
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64. On June14,2007,Stombersenta further email toCCC.sDirectors.

copiedto certainCarlyleofficers,announcingthat,notwithstandingthedecisionthe

previousdayto postponethe lPO, that, assumingall wentwell thefollowing day,they

intendedto "file on Mondaywith the AFM andproceedwith the lPO." Stombersought

Conway'sspecificconsentto proceedwith the lPO. Conwayconfirmedthathe was"OK

with a filing Mondayanda go if thingsremainastheyare."

65. On or aboutJune19,2007,DefendantscausedCCCto issueandbeginto

disseminatean"Offering Memorandum"of thatdate. ThelPO was,at that time,

intendedto consistof anoffering by CCCof 18,874,420newly issuedClassB shares

togetherwith the saleby certainsellingshareholdersof 173,200existingClassB shares.

The Offering Memorandumstatedthatthe initial offering pricewouldbebetween$20

and$22perClassB share.TheDefendantswerethuspreparedto havenewinvestors,

suchasPlaintiff andthemembersof theClass,notwithstandingthealreadymassive

deteriorationin CCC'sfinancial conditionandlossesofmorethan$60million, invest,

throughthe lPO, at the sameapproximatesharepriceasthoseinvestorswho purchased

sharesthroughtheprivateplacements.

66. TheOfferingMemorandumdescribedCCC'spurportedfinancial

condition,including its capitalallocationanduseof leverage,asofMarch31, 2007. This

presenteda materiallyinaccuratedepictionof its financial condition,because,as

describedabove,CCC'sflnanCiilconcfiiionhiddetefioratedsigllifIcantly ill thethree

monthsbetweenMarch31, 2007andthe lPO, whenPlaintiff andotherinvestors

purchasedClassB sharesandRDSs.

67. TheOfferingMemorandumcontainedanintentionallydeceptiveandvery

briefdescriptionof certainof CCC's"RecentDevelopments."Defendantsrepresented

thatCCC'sfair valuereserveshaddeclinedby only $17.3million betweenJanuary1,

2007andJune13,2007(anincrease$11.6million from January1 to March31,2007,

anda declineof$28.9million from March31,2007throughJune13,2007). This
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statementwasblatantlyfalseandmisleading. As notedabove,DefendantStomberhad

told all Boardmembers,on June13,2007,thatthe"Fair ValueReservewasdown

$63.9MM from inceptionand$76.2MMfor theyear." If Stomberhadspokenwith the

samecandorin theOffering Memorandumashehadwith theBoard,the IPO couldnot

havetakenplace.

68. The "The financial dataasofandfor theperiodendedJune13,2007"

containedin theOffering Memorandumwasrepresentedto havebeen"basedupon

valuationsof securitiesthathavebeenprovidedto [ccq by InteractiveDataPricingand

ReferenceData,Inc., anexternalpricing service." TheDefendantsrelieduponthedata

containedin theOffering Memorandumbecauseit waslessaccurate,anddid not

accuratelyreflectthetrue stateofaffairsat CCC. Notably, in internalcommunications,

theDefendantsandotherCarlylepersonnelreliedon internalcalculationswhich they

knewto bemoreaccurate.

69. In theOffering Memorandum,Defendantsfurtherrepresentedthatthe

declinein fair valuereservesbetweenMarchandJune2007wassimply andpurportedly

"a resultof changesin interestrates." Thatstatementwasintentionallyfalseand

misleading. As theDefendantswell knew, thedeclinewasduein largepartdueto a

dramaticincreasein thehaircutschargedby CCC'srepolenders,which threatenedthe

viability of CCC'sbusinessmodel. Theuseof themoreinnocuousterm "interestrates"
-- --

suggestedamoregeneric,andconsiderablylessthreatening,macroeconomicchange.

70. In theOffering Memorandum,Defendantsfurther representedthat"we are

targetingthepaymentof a dividendwithin a rangeof approximately$0.51to $0.56per

ClassB share(unaudited)for thequarterendingSeptember30, 2007andwithin a range

ofapproximately$0.53to $0.58perClassB share(unaudited)for thequarterending

December31, 2007,"andthat"we do not believethatthesechangesin interestratesor

the fluctuationsin our fair valuereservesandtotal equityperClassB sharewill affectour

targeteddividendsfor thequartersendingSeptember30,2007andDecember31,2007."
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Thesestatementswerefalseandmisleading,in thatthecalamitousdeclinesin CCC'sfair

valuereservesandmassiveimpairmentof its liquidity thathadoccurredto date,andwere

expectedto occurin thenearfuture, would renderthe issuanceofdividendsin thethird

andfourth quartersof 2007entirelyrecklessandunrealistic,if capableof

accomplishmentat all.

71. In the Offering Memorandum,theDefendantsaggressivelytoutedthe

relationshipbetweenCCCandCarlyle, toutingCarlyle'sstatusas"oneof theworld's

largestprivateinvestmentfirms" that"combinesglobalvision with local insight," and

hasin its employ"a teamof 782employees,including416 investmentprofessionals

operatingout of29 officesin 18 countries..." TheDefendantsfurther representedthat

"[w]e havestructuredour relationshipwith Carlyleto ensurethatour interestsareclosely

aligned." The foregoingstatementswerefalseandmisleadingin two respects.First,

theyfalselyportrayedCCCasaninvestmentproducttypical of Carlyleventures.The

Carlylebrandnameis morecloselyassociatedwith unusualinvestmentopportunities

offeredto elite investors,whenCCCwould beanentirelydifferent fund - a publicly

tradedinvestmentfund utilizing a not-particularly-sophisticated(nor novel) business

model. Carlyle'sresourceswould notprovideCCCwith anyparticularadvantages.

Second,to thecontrary,the interestsof CarlyleandCCCwerenot "closelyaligned,"as

CIM andCarlylehadaninterestin maximizingmanagementfeespaidfrom CCC,andin

prolongingtheoperationsof CCC(at leastuntil theendof the lockupperiodon the sales

of sharesby insiders)andavoidingtherecognitionof lossesthatcouldjeopardizeits

ability to continueto operate.It would havebeenin the interestsof CCCto cease

operationsentirely,or at leastto scalebackits acquisitionsofRMBS, in orderto

minimize losses.The interestof Carlyle andCIM, however,wereentirelydifferent.

72. TheOffering Memorandumcontainedanexceedinglylong "laundry list"

of "boilerplate""Risk Factors"describingpossibleadverseeventsthatmightconceivably

occur,andmightadverselyimpactCCC, in the future.Noneof such"Risk Factors"was
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intendedto truly inform investorsof theactualandthen-presentrisksto CCC'ssurvival

thatwerealreadyknownto eachof the Defendantsat the time theOffering Memorandum

wasissuedanddisseminatedby them.TheDefendants, throughtheir legalcounselwho

draftedit on their behalf,madesurethattheOffering Memorandum,containedno

descriptionof thevery seriousadverseeventsthathadalreadyoccurred,andhadalready

causedvery substantialumealizedlosses,and,at thevery least,shouldhaveraised

seriousdoubtabouttheviability of CCC's businessmodel.Suchmaterialnon-disclosure

of thereal risks thathadburdenedandwould continueto burdenCCCwasintentional

andpurposefullydeceptive.

73. Onthe issueofCCC'sLiquidity Cushion,the Offering Memorandum

stated:

Our investmentguidelinesrequireus to hold umestrictedcashandcash
equivalentsandunencumberedU.S. agencyor U.S. governmentsecurities
(together,the"Liquidity Cushion")equalto no lessthan20%of our Adjusted
Capital.TheLiquidity Cushionis intendedto be sufficientto meetreasonably
foreseeablemargincallson our financedsecurities.

ThemaintenanceofanunencumberedLiquidity Cushionis fundamentalto the
managementof a leveragedinvestmentportfolio. Our currentinvestment
guidelinesrequirea Liquidity Cushionequalto no lessthan20%of ourAdjusted
Capital.TheLiquidity Cushionis intendedto be sufficientto meetreasonably
foreseeablemargincallson our financedsecurities.We haveperformedextensive
statisticaltestingofour expectedportfolio, includingtestingduringperiodsof
significantfinancialmarketvolatility andstress,to determinethe level of this
�L�i�q�u�i�d�i�t�y�-�C�~ ..balancingiheneediorsufficien1-reserveS-with the rlesireto
efficiently deploycapital.Our liquidity positionis monitoredby Carlyle and
reviewedby our boardof directors.

The foregoingrepresentationswereintentionallyfalseandmisleading,inasmuchas

CCC'sBoardof Directorshadtwice recentlyapprovedreductionsin theLiquidity

Cushionto 15%,and10%,respectively.Moreover,theDefendantsknewthatthe

Liquidity Cushionwaslikely to imminentlyfall (andremain)well below20%dueto

impendingmargincallsaboutwhich theDefendantsalreadyknewwerecoming.
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74. DefendantsalsomadematerialomissionsconcerningCCC'sfinancial

condition,whichwasdescribedin somedetail above. Theseomissionsincludedthe

failure to disclosetheextentof thematerialdeclinein netassetvalueof CCC's portfolio,

theactualreasonsfor suchdecline,thehigh-risknatureof theportfolio in thethen­

presenteconomicenvironmentandtheadditionalmargincallstheDefendantsexpected

in thenearfuture.

75. On June28, 2007,following panickedstrategysessionsamongthemselves

andtheir advisors,DefendantscausedCCCto issueanannouncementthat it had

postponedthepricing datefor the IPO andthat it would issuea supplementalOffering

Memorandumcontaininga revisedtimetablefor theglobaloffering, aswell aschangesto

the termsoftheoffering. On thesameday, Stomberissueda letterto investorson behalf

of CCC,statingthatCCCwasreducingthe sizeof its offering to $300million (from

$415million) at a priceof $19pershare(from $22pershare)

76. On June29,2007,DefendantscausedCCCto issuea Supplemental

Offering Memorandum,announcinga decreasein thenumberofClassB sharesbeing

offeredfrom 19,047,620to 15,962,673andthatthe initial globalofferingpricewould be

$19perClassB share.

77. On July 4,2007,CCC ClassB shareswerelistedon Euronext.The IPO

wascompletedon July 11, 2007,with salesof a further 18,183,873ClassB sharesissued

af$T9persbare,raIsinggrossproceeds�o�f�$�3�4�5�,�4�9�4�~�O�O�U�. Ontnesameday,Defenoanfs

arrangedfor the $191million bridgeloanto Citigroupto berepaidusingthe fundsraised

throughthe IPO, togetherwith $1,798,000in intereston thetwo monthloan. CCCraised

$345.5million by way ofthis IPO. Thetotal fundsthereforeraisedby CCCthroughthe

privateplacementsin December2006andFebruary2007andthe IPO in July 2007

exceeded$945million.

78. Following the completionof the IPO, approximately3,503,600ClassB

shareswereheldby personsaffiliatedwith CIM. Substantiallyall of theseshareswere
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subjectto 180-daylockupagreementspursuantto which theholderscouldnot sell these

shares.The lockupagreementswould expireon or aboutJanuary7, 2008.

79. In light of thematerialadversefactstheyandtheir advisorsknewabout

theprecariousconditionofCCCandits businessmodel,Defendantsshouldneverhave

proceededwith the IPO. Defendantsshouldhaveinstead liquidatedCCC'sassets

entirely,or at leastliquidateda sufficientquantityofRMBS to sustaina 40%liquidity

cushion. Thesestepswould havecontainedsomeof the lossesincurredby CCC,andits

then-currentshareholders,at relativelymodestlevels. TheDefendantswereunwilling to

takethesesteps,however,astheywould haveforcedCCCto acknowledgesubstantial

(theretofore)unrealizedlosses,aswell asthe impossibilityofachievingCCC'sincome

and dividendobjectives,andwould haveprecludedCIM's further receiptof management

fees(tied to the full $945million beingraisedandinvested)and,ultimately, the saleby

insiders'of their incentivesharesfollowing the 180-daylockupperiod. Instead,the

Defendants,aidedandabettedby their advisors,defraudeda newgroupof investors,

thosewho, like Plaintiff, purchasedCCC sharessoldthroughtheIPO. If Defendantshad

madefull andhonestdisclosuresaboutCCC'sconditionasoflateJuneandearlyJuly,

2007,it would havebeenimpossibleto conducttheIPO. To makemattersworse,

Defendantsusedthe $345million raisedin the IPO for additionalleveragedRMBS

acquisitionsinsteadof improvingCCC'sliquidity andits chancesof survival.

DefendantsContinuedto MisrepresentthatCCCWould Follow a More
ConservativeApproach Requiredby Its InvestmentGuidelines,While It Continued

to UseLeveragein Excessof theLimits Imposedby ThoseGuidelines

80. In July 2007,Carlyle,CIM, andthedirectorsofCCC, includingConway,

failed to utilize the fundsobtainedfrom CCC'sIPO in orderto maintainandincrease

CCC'sLiquidity Cushionbut, in fact, usedthosefundsto buy moreRMBS. This was

despitethe fact thatCCChadalreadysustainunrealizedandundisclosedlosseson its

RMBS portfolio of approximately$63 million asof June30, 2007,andthatmarket
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conditionshadclearlybecomemuchmorevolatile andhadexacerbatedthe risks to

CCC'sability to remainviableandsolvent.

81. Notwithstandingthe gravecircumstancesfacing CCC at the time of the

IPO andthereafter,Defendantscontinuedto misrepresentthattheywerefollowing

CCC'sinvestmentGuidelines.In a July 27,2007letterto shareholders,Stomber

representedasfollows:

We areproudto saythat themodelworkedaswe plannedduringtherecent
interestrateriseandwe maintainedour liquidity cushionin accordancewith our
investmentguidelines....We will likely reduceouruseof leverageandfocuson
maintainingtargetedperformanceratherthanincreasereturns.Highercredit
spreadsandincreasedvolatility in the financial marketsincreasestherisksofour
portfolio. By reducingleverage,we believewe canoffsetthe increasein risk
associatedwith higherspreadsandvolatility while maintainingtargetedreturns.

The foregoingstatementswereintentionallyfalseandmisleading. CCC'smodelhadnot

"worked." As Defendantshadforeseen,marketconditionshaddeteriorateddrastically

sincelate2006. As measuredby themarketvalueof its assets,CCChadlost

approximately$70million sinceits inception. Nor hadit effectivelymaintainedthe

liquidity cushiontheDefendantsclaimedwould exist. TheBoardof CCChadtwice

grantedexceptionsto maintainingthatcushion,a fact not disclosedto thepublic in the

Offering Memorandum,in the SupplementalOffering Memorandumor otherwise.

Additionally, theproceedsof theBridgeLoanweretheonly reasonthatCCCdid not

-hav-eanegatille liquidity cushionat thetimeofthe �I�E�O�~

82. At a July 26, 2007Boardmeeting,HanceandStomberexplainedthat, in

thepressreleaseaccompanyingtheJune30, 2007quarterlyresults,theyhad"consciously

excludedanydiscussionof netassetvaluebecausetheywantedinvestorsto focusonthe

dividendpotential."Furthermore,theyexplained:"netassetvaluewasnot the focusof

[CCC's] managementandwasnot how [CCC] wasmanaged."Attemptingto divert

attentionto "dividendpotential"wasinherentlydeceptive,asa discussionofnetasset

valuewould haveaccuratelydepictedthepresentstateof affairsat CCC,whichhad

24

Case 1:11-cv-01142-ABJ   Document 1    Filed 06/21/11   Page 24 of 43



incurredsubstantiallossesto date(albeitunrealizedunderIFRS accountingrules). This

discussionamongthemembersofCCC'sBoardfurtherevidencestheDefendants'

premeditateddecisionto issuea falseandmisleadingOffering Memorandum,by de-

emphasizingthe (rapidly declining)netasset valueof CCCandemphasizingits

(increasinglyillusory) prospectsfor future dividends.

83. Also at theJuly 26,2007Boardmeeting,theDefendantscausedtheBoard

to approvetheacquisitionof a further (approximately)$1.5billion in RMBS. On July

30,2007andAugust3, 2007,theDefendantscausedCCCto purchase$1,429,089,180

and$73,550,172ofRMBS respectively,therebycontinuingto depleteCCC'sremaining

liquidity at a time whenit desperatelyneededto be increased.CertainofCCC'srepo

counterpartieswererequestinghaircutsin therangeof3 to 5% duringJuly 2007for

RMBS reposwith CCC.In particular,Bankof AmericaLLC indicatedto CCCthat it was

consideringobtaininghigherhaircutsfrom CCC.

84. By August2007,CCChadlittle or no Liquidity Cushionavailableto it

anddrasticallyneededto reduceleverageandrestructureits BusinessModel. Evenin

August2007,however,CCC did not sell anyRMBS. In August2007,CCChadmore

than$21 billion of outstandingrepoborrowings,employingleverageof 32 timescapital.

85. During August2007,therepofinancingrelationshipbetweenCantor

Fitzgerald(which hadpreviouslyprovided$3 billion of repofinancing)andCCC ceased
- -

following a $73 million margincall, which CarlyleandCIM refusedto meet.Bankof

AmericaandJPMorganrefusedto providerepofunding to CCC despitepreviously

havingopenrepoline availability of over$5 billion. Otherrepocounterpartiessuchas

LehmanBrothers,BearSteams,UBS andDeutscheBankcontinuedto seekandrequire

haircutsof3 to 4%.

86. On August7, 2007,StomberinformedConwayandHancethat"FT

[pricing] markedusdown30MM today" andthat "Cantormadea margincall thatwe

would not acceptandwe movedtheRMBS." Stomberalsosaidthathe suspected"we
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maygo below20 percentonour liquidity cushionandwill askthe independentdirectors

for prior approvaltonightor tomorrowto do so. Will askat thenextBoardmeetingfor

unilateralapprovalto go to 15 percentfor 90 dayssowe getawayfrom fire drills."

Stomberconcludedhis emailby stating:

I do not seethis problemgettingbetterin the shortrun - I expectit to get
worse.As a public company,we needto stick to ourmandateofbeinga
safeinvestmentandnot chasethe last50-100bpsofdividendyield. Our
dividendasit is remainssuperiorto thecompetition.

87. On August17,2007,Stombersentthe following email from his

Blackberry,entitled"Updatefor the Week" to CCC'sDirectors,copiedto severalCarlyle

officers,which describedthe gravepredicamentthathadbefallenCCC:

JoannesaidI shouldgive theBoardanupdatefor theweek- I havespokento you
or youhavereceivedemailsso I will quickly coverearliereventsandfocuson
wherewe arecurrentlyat -
1. Thecurrentcreditmarketmeltdownis worsethan98 on a statbasis- purefact
2. The liquidity cushionwasdesignedto covera 98 meltdownandthensome.In
98, no repodealerquestioneda 2percenthaircuton floatersandpriceswere
transparent
3. The subprimemeltdownandtheword mortgagehasaffectedeventhepriceof
AAA US govt floating ratecapsecuritiesbecauseof lackof buyersbeyondwhat
modelpricessuggest- nothiding behinda model,simplyput for thefirst time in
my careerplain vanilla agencydebttradedfrom a historicpriceof Libor minus 16
to Libor minus 11 - nowbackat minus16. We buy plainvanilla securities
overlaidwith a capthatis very transparentin themarket.This is not aboutexotic
optionmodelwhereit is difficult to price.Thepriceof 5 yearcaps(abenchmark
for ourportfolio) is plain vanilla andquotedon Bloomberg.
�4�~�R�e�p�o�-�d�e�a�l�e�r�s ha¥eabandonedourETthird part)'pricing serviceand-are­
markingsecuritiesto distressedprices.We haveover 100MM of cashpostedto
repodealersasmarginovertheMTM of theportfolio.
5. We haveLH askingfor 70MM of marginin thepast4 daysandagreeingthey
havechangedtheir MTM onrepoto bemoreconservativeandat levelsto sell
securitiesin size.Theyreadilyadmittedtodaythatpricesin themarketfor 50MM
blocksweresignificantlybelowtheir mark.
6. Ourmostpressingrisk is to dealerssuddenlysayingall haircutsareat 3 percent
- a 50 percentincreasein marginor 1percenton 23 bil of securitiesis 230MM.
Facingthis risk, I askedCarlyleto put in anadditional100MM ofcashin
unsecurednoteform afterour 6 underwritingbanksagreethat-
1. Theywill maintaina 2percenthaircutgoing forward
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2. Theywill honortheir amountof line committedon a reasonablebasisBill C
andI aremeetingwith the6 IBs Mondayto presentourproposal.Early
indicationsarethe IBs wantto work with usandsolvetheproblem.After all, they
just affirmedtheirDD on usandtook uspublic - theyshouldnotbe thevery
samebanksthatarenot living up to agreements,especiallyonpricing of repos.
Theparadox- the marketmeltdownmeanstheFedcannot raiserates- so our
cappedsecuritieswill not beat risk for ratesgoingabovethecap.Our FT pricing
serviceshoweda gainof 13MM lastnight. Our IFRS incomeanddividendtarget
is on target.Meanwhilewe weremargincalledtodayto theextentwherewe have
about5MM of cashleft - Lehmanwasthe worseexampleofa repodealerwhere
repomarkswere20 to 50 bpsawayfrom wherenewsecuritieswerebeingoffered
in thecashmarket.JPMwentto a 3percenthaircutandwe movedsecuritiesto
Citi at 2 percent- Citi hasbeena total pro. On the otherhand,JPMmadethe
commenta coupleof daysagothatall counterpartiesareat 3 percenthaircut­
which impliesall counterpartiesarethe sameandthesecuritiestheybuy arethe
same.Somuchfor sophisticatedrisk/creditmodelsthatnewBIS standardsmust
approve. Ourplanthatyou approvedis to - meetwith the 6 underwritersMonday
andtell themtheymusthonor2 percenthaircutsandreasonablepricesandif so,
Carlylewill put 100MM of cashinto CCC in unsecurednoteform. Now is not
thetime to tell youhow we expectto financerepoin the future to removethis
problem.It dealswith a termrepomarket,guaranteedrepolinesandnot having
securitiesboughton a rampedbasissowe haveconcentratedrisk to onegeneral
price level of RMBS securities.This all will bevettedat a future Boardmeeting.
Bill hasaskedif I can ...still digestsolid foods?- wish thatwasmy problem,but
not anissue.I will likely haveto listento my tapedspeechesof Churchill during
WWII for inspiration. Availableall weekendfor anyquestionfrom anyone
addressed.(emphasisadded)

88. During a August23,2007,emergencymeetingof the Board,Hance

explainedto theBoardthat:

1. in the last four weekssincethe lastboardmeeting,the mortgagemarketsin the
- t:JSlradgotten�~�d�e�c�t�d�e�d�t�y�w�o�r�s�e�"�;

2. CCChadfacedsubstantialmargincalls;
3. someofCCC'slendershaddecreasedtheamounttheywerewilling to lend
CCCto 97%of thevalueof theunderlyingsecurities(that is, theyincreasedthe
haircutto 3%);
4. CCChadgonethrough$200million of liquidity; and
5. it waslikely thatCCCwould drawdownthefull $100million of theCarlyle
loan.
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Accordingto Hance"[t]he overalleffectoftheseeventson [Ccq hasbeento diminish

[CCC's] liquidity cushionbelowzero".As a result,CCCwould needmorecashifit was

to be able"to maketherepurchaseroll on Monday,"August27, 2007.

managementis underno illusionsof the impactof recenteventsontheportfolio
andrealizesthatit needsto preservecapitalwhereit can.Managementbelievesit
would beprudentto wind downthe Companyto its corelevel at this time.

89. On adatebetweenAugust17,2007andSeptember17,2007,CCC's

capitalallocatedto RMBS exceeded85%asa consequenceof salesofCCC'sassetsother

thanRMBS assets.CCC'scapitalallocatedto RMBS exceeded85%at all times

thereafter.

90. If DefendantshadaccuratelyrecognizedCCC'sactuallosses,astheywere

obligatedto do, theywould haveexceededa stunning$270million asof August31,

2007. TheDefendants,however,continuedto engagein a concertedcourseof action

designedto avoidtherecognitionof losses,andto continuegeneratingfee incomefor

CIM andaffiliates.Moreover,DefendantsintentionallyconcealedCCC'sdire

circumstancesfrom existingshareholdersandthe investingpublic generally,all thewhile

CCCwashurtling towardcollapse.

91. On August27, 2007,Stomberissueda letterto CCC's shareholdersin

responseto severalof its shareholders'requests"for informationaboutthecurrentstatus

ofCCC'sinvestmentportfolio." Theletterdescribedtheeffectsof recentmarket

volatility uponCCC:

This environmentproducedtwo adverseconsequencesfor CCC: (i) a modest
declinein the fair valueofAAA ratedUS Governmentagencyissuedmortgage­
backedsecurities,and(ii) anincreasein collateral(margin)requiredby our
lenders.As the fair valueof our MBS portfolio declined,our lendersmademargin
calls to ensurethatthe amountofCCC'sindebtednessdid not exceedthe fair
valueof theunderlyingcollateral.In addition,someofour lendershaverecently
decreasedtheamounttheywerewilling to lendCCC to 97%ofthefair valueof
theunderlyingsecurities,from thehistoricallendingrateof98%of fair value.
Consequently,CCC'sliquidity cushionhasnotbeensufficientto meetrecent
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margincalls.Managementandtheboardhaveactedswiftly anddefinitively to
addressthedramaticchangein our businessenvironment.

A mediareleasepublishedby CCC onthe sameday includeda descriptionof the steps

takenby CCC in orderto meetits margincalls,which weredescribedashavingbeen

taken"to createadditionalliquidity in theeventof continuedmarketvolatility" andto

"help usbetterweatherthemarketconditionswe arefacing."

92. Theforegoingstatementsthatmanagementhadacted"swiftly and

definitively" to addressthechallengesfacing CCC, andthatmanagementhadtakensteps

to "createadditionalliquidity," wereintentionallyfalseandmisleading. TheDefendants

had nottakenstepsto addressCCC'sliquidity problems. Whatneededto bedonewas

simple- CCCneededto sell off all, or at leasta substantialportionof, its RMBS

holdings. TheDefendantsdid not wantto do this, however,becauseit would haveforced

CCC to recognizeits (thusfar) unrealizedlosses,andobliteratedthe fa<;adeof normalcy

andtheprospectof issuinga quarterlydividend. Themeasurestakenby theDefendants

wereattemptsto put in placeshort-termsolutionsto avoidthe saleby CCCofRMBS

assets,which would haverequiredCCCto realizeandrecordtheaccompanyinglossesor

raiseadditionalequity capitalat marketpricessignificantlybelowthe IPO price,which

wouldhavebeendetrimentalto Carlyle'sreputationbut would havebeenbeneficialto

CCC andits shareholders.

93. In themonthof August2007,CCC'sreportednetassetvaluehaddeclined

by approximately24%from $843,483,058at theendof July 2007to $642,104,242at the

endofAugust2007,a lossof some$200million in onemonth.

94. By September17,2007theaveragepricevolatility ofRMBS securities,as

measuredby theDefendants,wasanastounding140%higherthanit wasin November

2006.

95. Defendantsannouncedon September11,2007thatfundamentalrevisions

to CCC'sbusinessmodelwererequiredandwould be implemented,acknowledgingthat
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CCC'sbusinessmodelneededto bethoroughlyrestructuredto reduceleverageand

increaseminimumliquidity cushionto at least40%.Eventhen,however,CCC's

excessivelyleveragedconditionhadalreadymadeit vulnerableto imminentcollapse.In

orderto makeit appearthatthey weredoingsomethingproactively,theDefendants

publicly committedto "employ lessleverage,""havemorediversifiedassetclasses,"and

concentrateon "improving andstabilizingsources"for CCC.

96. TheDefendants'announcementsof September10-11,2007werefalseand

misleading. Theydid not haveany intentionofemploying,anddid not employ,any

materialrevisionsto CCC'sbusinessmodel. Specifically,theydid not, in practice,

imposeor couldthey imposea 40%minimumliquidity requirement,nor did they

substantiallyreduceCCC'soverall leverage.Defendantschoseto continueto operate

CCC well outsidethe limits setin its initial guidelines. In fact, all thewhile concealing

their conductfrom investorsandexistingshareholders,theyexpresslyapprovedthe

suspensionoftherequirements(a) of a 20%minimumliquidity cushion,(b) thatCCC

maintainrepolinesof a minimumof 125%of all borrowings,and(c) thata maximumof

85%ofCCC'scapitalbe allocatedto RMBS.

97. On October1, 2007,Stombersentanemailto CCC'sDirectors,copiedto

severalCarlyleofficers,which requestedapprovalfor the suspensionof therequirements

(a) of a20%minimumliquidity cushion,(b) thatCCCmaintainrepolinesof a minimum

of 12SUl<>·ofaIloorrowil1gs,al1d(c} thata maximumof 85%()fCCCs capitalDe allocated

to RMBS. TheBoardapprovedtherequests.

98. In CCC'sreportfor thequarterendingSeptember30,2007,issuedonor

aboutNovember15,2007,StomberrepresentedthatCCC's"20% liquidity cushionwas

adequatefor thepricechangeson our AAA-rated Agencyportfolio during this quarter."

This statementwasfalseandmisleading,asthe20%Liquidity Cushionfell far shortof

the funding neededto meetthen-currentmargincallsbasedonmarketpricechanges

alone.
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99. By November13,2007,CCC'sLiquidity Cushionhadfurther reducedto

$19.9million, which was3% of AdjustedCapital. Contraryto their representationsto

the investingpublic, Defendantshadnot takenthe stepsnecessaryto maintain,let alone

increase,CCC'sLiquidity Cushion.

100. OnNovember13,2007,theBoardmet. TheBoardapprovedClM's

quarterlymanagementfees(for thequarterendingSeptember30,2007)of$3.9million.

TheBoardapprovedtherepaymentofanoutstanding$100million loanfrom theCarlyle,

andtheborrowingof anadditional$100million (at 10%interest)from Carlyle.

Defendantsalsoamendedthedefinition of "liquidity cushion"to includeasliquid assets

undrawndebtfrom theCarlyle. Thus,insteadof takingstepsto actuallyimproveCCC's

liquidity position,Defendantsthusattemptedto re-engineerthedefinitionof "liquidity"

to makeCCC'spositionappearmorefavorablethanit was. TheBoarddid not takeany

stepsto actuallyaddressCCC'sprecariousliquidity problemsandover-accumulationof

RMBS-basedassets.At the sameBoardmeeting,HanceinformedtheBoard"that

managementwasrecommendingseveralchangesto [CCC's] investmentguidelinesbased

on its experiencesduring recentweeks"andStomberstatedthatmanagement

recommendedthe suspensionof certainrequirementsof CCC's Guidelinesuntil March

31, 2008"to give managementincreasedflexibility to manageCCCthroughthe liquidity

crisis." Remarkably,despitenot havingavailablesufficientcashto do so,Stomberand

otnermembersofthe130ardadvocatedattheNoveriiber13,20D7Boardmeetingthat

CCC shouldstill planto paya dividendbasedon fourth quarterandyear-endearnings.

101. At themeetingof theBoardofCCConNovember13,2007,asproposed

by CarlyleandClM, thedirectorsof CCCresolvedto suspendtherequirementthatCCC

maintainaminimumLiquidity Cushionuntil March31,2008.

102. Defendantstook no stepsto (a) reduceRMBS assets;and(b) acquire

assetswith lower risk, suchasAAA ratedG7 governmentsecuritieswith amaturityof

lessthanthreeyears,in orderto restoreCCC'scapitalallocatedto RMBS to at most
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85%. CCC'scapitalallocatedto RMBS ascalculatedby CIM increasedto 94%by

September30, 2007andcontinuedto increaseto 98%by December31,2007andto

99.8%by January15,2007.

103. Onor aboutJanuary7, 2008,the 180-daylockupperiodapplicableto

ClassB sharesheldby Carlyleinsidersexpired. TheDefendantsandtheir cohortswere

thereafterfree to sell their shares.

TheCollapseof CCC

104. At ameetingoftheBoardofCCCon February27,2008,asproposedby

Defendants,thedirectorsof CCCresolvedto suspendCCC'sminimum20%Liquidity

Cushionrequirementuntil September30, 2008.

105. On February27,2008,CCCissuedits annualreportfor the yearending

December31, 2007. Notwithstandingthe fact thatDefendantsknewit wasmisleading

to investorsandshareholders,CCC reportednet incomeof$16,790,000,underIFRS,for

theyearendedDecember31, 2007. Stomberfalsely representedthat "[d]uring the fourth

quarterourportfolio stabilizedandwe wereableto generatereturnsconsistentwith our

neartermtargets." Stomberfurther representedthat"[wle continueto run ourbusinessto

preservethevalueof our shareholders'equity."

106. Thesestatementswerefalseandmisleading,asCCCwasin perilous

financial conditionandon thevergeof collapse. As at December31,2007,CCChad

incurreda changein the fair valuereservedeficit of $285,623,000aspartof its equity

underIFRS andshare-basedcompensationexpenseof$1,853,000.UnderUS GAAP,

CCC would havereporteda staggeringlossof $266,987,000.CCC'sLiquidity Cushion,

asoriginally defined,was$27,181,000asat December31,2007(4.1%of Adjusted

Capital)comprisedof cashandcashequivalentsof$11,751,000andunencumbered

RMBS of$15,430,000.Accordingto thedefinition amendedonNovember13,2007,

CCC'sLiquidity Cushionwas$67,181,000(10% of AdjustedCapital),comprisedof cash
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andcashequivalentsof$11,751,000,unencumberedRMBS of$15,430,000andundrawn

loanfundsfrom Carlyleof $40,000,000.

107. On March5, 2008,CCCissuedapressrelease,indicatingthat,duringthe

weekbetweenFebruary28 andMarch5, it hadreceivedmargincalls from lenders

requiringit to postanadditional$60million of collateral. CCCcouldnot meetall of

thosedemands,which led at leastonelenderto senda defaultnotice. OnThursday

March6, CCCsharesweredown60%(from approximately$15pershare)to $5.00per

share. TheDutchmarketregulatorsuspendedtradingin CCC afterits sharesclosedon

Thursday,March6, 2008at apriceofapproximately$5.00pershare.

108. OnTuesdayMarch 11,2008,tradingin CCC sharesre-opened.On March

12,2008,CCC announcedthat"it expectslenderswill soontakepossessionof

substantiallyall" its remainingassetsafter it wasunableto meetsurgingmargincallson

its portfolio of residential-mortgage-backedsecurities." SharesofCCClost 95%of their

value,falling from approximately$3 pershareto $0.15pershare.

109. On March 17,2008,the Royal Courtof Guemseyentereda "winding up"

orderdirectingthatCCCbe liquidated,andappointedcertainliquidatorsto wind down

theaffairsof, andliquidate,theenterprise.Alan RobertsandNeil Mather wereappointed

JointLiquidatorsof CCC. On March 18, 2008,on March 18, 2008ChristopherMorris

andAdrian JohnDenisRabetwereappointedAdditional JointLiquidators(theJoint
---_..- _.... - -- -- - -

Liquidators andAdditional JointLiquidatorsarecollectivelyreferredto as"the

"Liquidators").

CCC'sFraudulentConcealment,andtheBelatedEmergence
of FactsSufficientto Supporta Claim of SecuritiesFraud

110. In orderto concealthefraudulentschemeby which Defendants

misrepresentedthe financial conditionandbusinessprospectsof CCC,Defendants

undertookdeliberateandaffirmative stepsto conceal,bothbefore,duringandsubsequent
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to the ClassPeriod,factssufficientto apprisePlaintiff andtheClassof theexistenceof

potentialclaimsagainsttheDefendants.

111. During the ClassPeriod,Defendantsintentionallyandrepeatedly

mademisrepresentationsof materialfactsconcerning,inter alia, theoperatingcondition

ofCCC,theefficacyofCCC'sbusinessmodel,andtheadequacyof its Liquidity

Cushion. Additionally, Defendantsrefusedto timely liquidateRMBS positionsthat

would haveincreasedCCC'sLiquidity Cushionand,ultimately, reducedits losses.They

refusedto do sobecauseit would haveforcedCCCto acknowledgepublicly thoselosses

underIFRS,andbecausethereductionin its RMBS inventorywould haveeliminatedany

(scantexisting)mathematicalpossibilityof achievingDefendants'publicly proclaimed

andumealisticallyaggressiveincomeanddividendobjectivesfor CCC.

112. While thecollapseof CCC andfailure of its businessmodelbecame

public knowledgein March2008,Defendantscontinued,thereafter,to concealfrom the

generalpublic, andevenfrom the Liquidators,thosefactssufficient to constitutea

violation of Section1O(b) of theExchangeAct, including factsthatwould havebeen

sufficientto apprisePlaintiff andtheClassthat(l) Defendants'earlierrepresentations

werefalseandmisleading,(2) Defendantsomittedto disclosematerialfactsthat were

necessaryto bedisclosedunderthecircumstances,and(3) Defendantshaddonesowith

anintentionto defraudand/orin recklessdisregardof the truth.

113. Uponiriformationaridbe1ieI,CCC'sLiquidators,driiirigthe-twoyearsthaf

followed their March2008appointment,beganto investigateprivatelythecircumstances

of the management,andsubsequentcollapse,ofCCc.

114. TheLiquidators'efforts,however,wererepeatedlyresistedby the

Defendants.TheLiquidatorshaveallegedthatthe Defendantshaverepeatedlyobstructed

their effortsto obtaincustodyofthecompletebooksandrecordsof CCC. As allegedby

the Liquidators,in themonthsimmediatelyafterCCC wasorderedto bewoundup,

"certainbooks andrecordsof CCC,weremadeavailableby CarlyleandCIM for
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inspection"by theLiquidators,"but thesebooksandrecordsmadeavailablefor

inspectionandcopyingdid not representthecompletebooksandrecordsof CCC. In

particular,the sourcesoftherecordsdid not includethedirectorsandkey personnelof

CCC,email recordsweregenerallyconfinedto the first threemonthsof 2008andthe

booksandrecordsinspecteddid not includeanumberof categorieswhich would

reasonablybeexpectedto exist."

115. BetweenMarch2010andJuly 2010,"despiteextensiveandrepeated

requestsfrom theLiquidators,CarlyleandCIM haverefusedto producethe booksand

recordsof CCCto theLiquidators." TheLiquidatorsfurtherallegethat"[t]he only

documentsthatCarlyleand CIMhaveproducedarecopiesof 52 randomlyselected

documents producedon May 4, 2010which CarlyleandCIM's counseldescribedas

being'theCCC documentsthatwe havebeenableto accessat a reasonableexpense.",

116. TheLiquidatorsfurtherallegethat"Carlyle and CIMhavenotproduced

anyof their recordsto the Liquidatorswhich relateto the affairsofCCC," andthatthey

"haveresortedto relying upontechnicalanduntestedobjectionsto theCourt's

jurisdictionunderSection1782ofTitle 28 of theUnitedStatesCode."

117. TheLiquidatorsallegethatdirectorHarveyJaySarlesproducedcertain

emailsandotherrecordsthatwereneverproducedby CCCto the Liquidators.

118. TheLiquidatorsfurtherallegethat,notwithstandingthefact thatthe2007

annmilreportdis61osedanasset6fCCCdescribedas"Investrneritin internalusesoftware

andotherproperty",comprisingcomputersoftwareandhardware,with a bookvalue

purportedlyexceeding$4 million, this computersoftwareandhardwarewasretainedby

CarlyleandCIM andhasneverbeenreturnedto CCC or its Liquidators.

119. On or aboutJuly 7, 2010,theLiquidatorscommencedvarious

substantiallyidenticalcivil actions againstthe former directorsof CCCandothersin

variouscourtsin Delaware,the Districtof Columbia, New York andGuernsey.The

LiquidatorsallegedthattheIndividual Defendantsnamedhereinbreachedtheir fiduciary
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dutiesto CCC,principally by causingit to acquireanexcessiveportfolio of RMBS, and

to borrowexcessivelyfrom repolenders,without reservingadequateliquid assetsto

enableit to meetmargincallsandincreased"haircuts"beingchargedby repolenders.

120. If not for therepeatedrefusalof theDefendantsnamedhereinto cooperate

with theLiquidators,theLiquidatorswould havebeenableto commencetheir actions

muchearlierthantheydid.

121. TheLiquidators'Complaintrevealedmaterialadverseinformationknown

to theDefendantsthatwaswithheldfrom thepublic duringtheClassPeriodand

thereafter,including factsthat indicatethattheDefendantsmadematerial

misrepresentationsandomissions,anddid sowith intentto defraudand/orrecklessly.

TheLiquidators'Complaintis theprincipal sourceof previouslyundisclosedadverse

information,andotherpreviouslynonpublicinformation,that forms thebasisof

Plaintiffs allegationsthatDefendantsmaderepresentationsthatwerenot truthful, failed

to disclosematerialadverseinformation,anddid sowith scienter. Plaintiff, believing

themto betrue,hascopiedfactualallegationsliberally from theLiquidators'Complaints.

122. TheDefendants'fraudwas therebyeffectivelyandindefinitely

concealedfrom thepublic at leastuntil July 7,2010. As a resultof suchconcealment,the

Plaintiff andClassmemberswereat no time prior to thecommencementof the

Liquidators'actions,onactualor constructivenoticeof the fraud committedby the

Defendants.

CLAIMS FOR RELIEF

COUNT I

(Violations of Section lO(b) of the ExchangeAct and Rule 10b-5Promulgated
Thereunder Against DefendantStomber)

123. Plaintiff repeatsand restateseachand every allegationcontainedin the

foregoingparagraphsasif fully setforth herein.

124. Defendantsengagedand participatedin a scheme,plan and continuous
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courseof conductto misrepresentandconcealthe true operatingand financial condition

of the Companyfrom approximatelyJune16, 2007andcontinuingthroughoutthe Class

Period. Suchschemewas intendedto anddid operateasa fraud anddeceiton Plaintiff

and membersof the Class, in an effort to createand maintain artificially high market

prices for CCC securities,and causingthem to purchaseCCC securitiesat artificially

inflated marketprices.

125. In furtheranceof this unlawful scheme,plan and course of conduct,

Defendants,individually and jointly, made untrue statementsof material fact and/or

failed to disclosematerial information in their possessionregarding,inter alia, (a) the

Company'sfinancial conditionand(b) the adequacyof the Company'sliquidity position

andefficacyof its businessmodel.

126. As detailed herein, Defendants each knowingly or with deliberate

recklessnesscommittedmanipulativeor deceptiveactsin furtheranceof their fraudulent

schemeincluding, inter alia, (a) causingand/orpermittingthe disseminationof falseand

misleading Offering Memoranda, news releasesand other communicationsto the

investing public; (b) preparing,approving and disseminatingfinancial statementsthat

overstatedand misrepresentedthe operatingand financial condition of CCC; and (c)

failing to take stepsto correct the lack of sound internal controls and oversight risk

management,andthedeficienciesandmaterialweaknessestherein.

127. Eachof the Defendantswasadirect,necessaryandsubstantialpartiCipant

in thecommoncourseof conductallegedherein.

128. Defendants'schemeoperatedas a fraud or deceit on Plaintiff and the

membersof the Class becausethe false and misleading statementsconcerningthe

financial and operating condition of CCC enabledthe IPO to be carried out and,

thereafter,causedand maintainedthe artificial inflation in the market price of CCC

securitiespricesthroughouttheClassPeriodanduntil CCCcollapsedin March2008.

129. The Defendants' fraudulent conduct created the market for CCC
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securities. CCC shouldneverhaveconductedthe IPO, and could not havetakenCCC

public, nor could have CCC securitieshavecontinuedto be publicly tradedduring the

ClassPeriod,if not for thecourseofconductdescribedherein.

130. In ignoranceof the fact that market prices of the CCC securitieswere

artificially inflated and relying, directly or indirectly, on the false and misleading

statementsmadeby Defendantsor uponthe integrity of themarketin which the securities

tradedand/or on the absenceof material adverseinformation, Plaintiff and the other

membersof the ClassacquiredCCC securitiesduringthe ClassPeriodat artificially high

pricesandweredamagedthereby.

131. At the time of said misrepresentationsand omissions,Plaintiff and the

other membersof the Classwere ignorantof their falsity and had no reasonto believe

that the Defendants'public representationsregardingCCC were not true, nor that the

Defendants hadfailed to disclosematerial adverseinformation. Had Plaintiff and the

other membersof the Classknown of the true operatingand financial conditionof the

Companyandof its otherproblemsasreferredto herein,Plaintiff andthe othermembers

of the Classwould not havepurchasedor otherwiseacquiredCCC securitiesor, if they

had purchasedand/orotherwiseacquiredsuch securitiesduring the ClassPeriod, they

would nothavedonesoat theartificially inflatedpricesthattheypaid.

132. As the truth about the extent and severity of the deteriorationof the

financial andoperatingcondition,andinadequacyof internalcontrols,of CCCstartedto

bereleasedandbecomeapparentto the market,the pricesof CCC securitiesplummeted.

All or a significantportionof the decreasein the marketpricesof CCC stockwasdueto

the disclosure,revelationand/or leakageof information inconsistentwith Defendants'

prior disclosuresandotherpublic filings andreleases.

133. The totality of the circumstancesaroundthe decline in the tradingprices

of CCC stock combine to negateany inferencethat the economic loss suffered by

Plaintiff andthe othermembersof the Classwas causedby changedmarketconditions,
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macroeconomicor industry factors or other facts unrelatedto Defendants'fraudulent

conductasdescribedabove.

134. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants'fraudulent schemeto

artificially inflate and maintain the market prices of CCC securities,Plaintiff and the

othermembersof the Classsufferedeconomiclossesin connectionwith their respective

purchasesand salesof the Company'ssecuritiesduring the ClassPeriod,which losses

cannotpresentlybequantified.

135. The resultingcollapsein the marketpricesof CCC stockwas foreseeable

at the time of the IPQ and at all times of the Defendants'misrepresentationsand

omissionsasdescribedabove. Indeed,despitebeingawareof the consequencesof their

fraudulent conduct, Defendants neverthelessknowingly engaged in the alleged

misconduct,which, whenthe truth finally emerged,causedCCC stockmarketvaluesto

collapse.

136. Plaintiff will rely, at least in part, upon the presumptionof reliance

establishedby the fraud-on-the-marketdoctrine. At all relevanttimes, the market for

CCC's publicly traded securitieswas an efficient market for the following reasons,

amongothers:

(a) During the ClassPeriod, the Company'scommonstock met the

requirementsfor public listing and was listed and traded on

Euronext,a highly efficientmarket.

(b) The Companyregularly issuedpressreleases,which werecarried

by international news wires. Each of these releaseswas

publicly availableandenteredthepublic marketplace.

137. As a result, in connectionwith the IPQ andotherwise,the marketfor the

Company'spublicly tradedsecuritiespromptly digestedcurrentinformationwith respect

to CCC from all publicly availablesourcesandreflectedsuchinformationin theprice of

the Company'ssecurities. Under these circumstances,all purchasersof the CCC's
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publicly tradedsecuritiesduring the ClassPeriod sufferedsimilar injury throughtheir

purchasethereofat artificially inflatedprices.

138. By virtue of the foregoing, DefendantStomber, alongwith CCC, has

violatedSection10(b)of theExchangeAct andRule 10b-5promulgatedthereunder.

COUNT II
(Violations of Section20(a)ofthe ExchangeAct Against all Defendants)

139. Plaintiff repeatsand restateseachand every allegationcontainedin the

foregoingparagraphsasif fully setforth herein.

140. As statedabove,the Defendantsactedas andwerecontrolling personsof

CCC within the meaningof § 20(a)of the ExchangeAct. By reasonof their high-level

positions with the Company, their ownership of equity in CCC, CIM, Tca, Tca

Holdingsandrelatedenterprises,their participationin the drafting, approving,and filing

of false financial statementsand other deceptivedocumentswith regulatoryauthorities

and their disseminationto the investingpublic, and their participationin the fraudulent

schemesand acts describedherein, theseDefendantshad the power and authority to

control and causeCCC to engagein the wrongful conductcomplainedof herein. By

reasonof such conduct, the Defendantsnamedherein are liable to Plaintiff and the

membersof theClasspursuantto §20(a)oftheExchangeAct.

141. As setforth above,DefendantseachviolatedSection1O(b) andRule 10b-5

by thdr actsandQmissiQnsasallegedin �t�h�i�s�_�C�o�m�p�l�a�i�n�~�. By.virtue_of thdrp_Qsitionsas

controlling personsof CCC, the non-CCC Defendantsare liable to Plaintiff and the

membersof the Classfor their damagespursuantto Section20(a)of the ExchangeAct.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffsprayfor reliefandjudgment,asfollows:

A. Determiningthat this actionis a properclassaction,certifying Plaintiff as

Class representativeunder Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedureand

appointingits counselasClass Counsel;
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B. Awarding compensatorydamagesin favor of Plaintiff and the other

membersof the Class against Defendantsfor all damagessustainedas a result of

Defendants'wrongdoingin an amountto be provenat trial, including pre-judgmentand

post-judgmentinterestthereon;

C. Awarding Plaintiff and the other membersof the Classtheir reasonable

costsandexpensesincurredin this action,includingcounselfeesandexpertfees;and

D. SuchotherandfurtherreliefastheCourtmaydeemjust andproper.

DEMAND FOR TRIAL BY JURY

Pursuantto Rule 38(b) of the FederalRulesof Civil Procedure,Plaintiff hereby

demandstrial by jury of all issuesthatmaybesotried.

June21, 2011

JonathanW. Cuneo(D.C. BarNo. 939389)
MatthewE. Miller (D.C. BarNo. 442857)
CUNEO GILBERT & LADUCA, LLP
507C Street,N.E.
Washington,DC 20002
(202) 789-3960

RichardD. Greenfield
MargueriteR. Goodman
GREENFIELD& GOODMAN, LLC
250HudsonStreet,8thFloor
New York, N.Y. 10013
(9-17+4954446-

Co-Counselfor Plaintiffandthe Class
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lJ.NITElJ �~�l�A�T�E�~ �l�J�l�~�l�J�U�L�l LUUKI

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

�~�. L. PHELPS,Individually andOn Behalfof Al
IthersSimilarly Situated

Plaintiff,

v.

OHN CRUMPTONSTOMBER,et a!.

Defendants.

CaseNo.

CERTIFICATIONOFPROPOSEDLEAD PLAINTIFF

E.L.Phelps,thePlaintiff in theabove-captionedaction,herebycertify that:

· I havereviewedtheattachedComplaintandherebyauthorizeRichardD. Greenfield,
JonathanW. CuneoandMatthewMiller andsuchothercounseldesignatedthereinto
actonmy behalfin this matterin applyingfor LeadPlaintiff statusandfor all other
purposes.

· I did not acquirethesecuritiesthatarethesubjectof this actionat thedirectionofmy
counselorin orderto participatein this privateactionor anyotherlitigation underthe
federalsecuritieslaws.

· I amwilling to serveasa LeadPlaintiff eitherindividually or aspartof a group.A
LeadPlaintiff is a representativepartywho actson behalfofotherClassmembersin
directingtheaction,andwhosedutiesmayincludeprovidingtestimonyatdeposition
andtrial, if necessary.

· I representandwarrantthatI amauthorizedto executethis Certificationonbehalfof
-eeftain-pureflasers-ofthe-seeurities-af-c-arlyleB--apitatC--i}rporation ('-'C-£C7{-inclttding, ---
-as-tfte-easemaybe;myself,anyee-e-wners;-any-eor-poratioflsor otherentities;--andIor-
anybeneficialowners).

· I will not acceptanypaymentsfor servingasarepresentativepartyonbehalfof the
Classbeyondmypro rata shareof anyrecovery,exceptsuchreasonable costsand
expenses(includinglostwages)directly relatingto therepresentationof theClassas
orderedor approvedby theCourt.
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j. I understandthatthis is not aclaimfonn, andthatmy ability to sharein anyrecovery
asa memberof theClassis unaffectedby my decisionto serveasa representative
partyor LeadPlaintiff.

7, During theClassPeriodassetforth in theComplaint,I purchased30,789sharesof
CCC ClassB commonstockata costof $494,991.Theseshareswereownedby me
beneficiallyandI sustainedanetlossof $337,101.

t During thethreeyearsprior to the dateof this Certification,I havenot soughtto serve
andI havenot servedasarepresentativeparty for a classin anactionfiled underthe
federalsecuritieslaws.

declareunderpenaltyofperjury,underthe laws of theUnitedStates,thatthe
nforrnationsetforth hereinis accurate.

�~�x�e�c�u�t�e�d this 13 dayof June,2011.

E. L. Phelps
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